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25MDIS/0401
Your reference: MC25-302908 Government
of South Australia
Hon Nat Cook MP
The Hon Mark Butler MP

Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the NDIS

Via email: Health.gov.au
Mt

Deaw
Thank you for your correspondence regarding
and the current member acting arrangements Qf the Natl?‘ Disability

Iftstrance Agency (NDIA) Board. (\6 S

| am supportive of
as well as the proposed acting arrangemen N members Ms Maryanne
Diamond AO, Dr Graeme Innes AM, and e@s |ne AO.

I look forward to receiving
future updates in accordance with-stbsegtion 127(3) of the National Disability

Insurance Scheme Act 2013 (N@s Aéﬂ\ \2@

Thank you again for your I@ﬁ'er a\hﬁ\f%(\@epmg me informed.

Yours sincerely b Q

&‘(\\%Q Q

/\/ (oolt ‘&iﬁ@@

Hon Nat Cook MP
MINISTER FOR HUMAN SERVICES
MINISTER FOR SENIORS AND AGEING WELL

|4 110 12025
cc: —@health.gov.au

Minister for Human Services | Minister for Seniors and Ageing Well
GPO Box 2832 Adelaide SA 5001 | DX 115 -l
T: (08) 8463 6560 | E: ministerhumanservices@sa.gov.au | www.dhs.sa.gov.au | ABN: 11 525 031 744
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s47E(c), s47F
From: s47E(c), s47F
Sent: Friday, 7 November 2025 11:43 AM
To: s47E(c),
Subject: F#¥ Letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Disability, Carers and Community

Services Suzanne Orr - MC25-902908 [SEC=OFFICIAL]

OFFICIAL

ACT response

OFFICIAL

From: ParticipantsandPerformance S47E(d) @health.gov.au>

Sent: Wednesday, 15 October 2025 10:14 AM

To: STEWART, Nerissa <Nerissa.STEWART@Health.gov.au>; MACISAAC, James
<James.MACISAAC@Health.gov.au>

Cc: S47E(c), s47F @Health.gov.au>; ParticipantsandPerformance

S47E(d) @health.gov.au>; S47E(c), 54%§\’ a ’0 @Health.gov.au>
Subject: FW: Letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Dlsablhty, Carers and Community Services
Suzanne Orr - MC25-902908 [SEC=0OFFICIAL]

OERICIAL

Hi Nerissa/James

ACT have received and responded to.the letter on the NDIA board appointment and have no issues.

Thanks SA7E(C), s47F

s47E(c), s47F
Executive Officer to James Maclsaac
First Assistant Secretary NDIS Participants & Performance

NDIS Participants & Performance Division | Disability and Carers Group
Australian Government Department of Health, Disability and Ageing

M:s47E(c), s47F @health.gov.au | E: S47E(d) (@health.gov.au

This email comes to you from Ngunnawal Land

Location: Aviation House
PO Box 9848, Canberra ACT 2601, Australia

The Department of Health, Disability and Ageing acknowledges First Nations peoples as the Traditional Owners of Country throughout
Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and their cultures, and to all Elders
both past and present.

OFFICIAL
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From: Minister Butler DLO
Sent: Wednesday, 15 October 2025 10:10 AM

To: @Health.gov.au>; ParticipantsandPerformance
@health.gov.au>

Subject: FW: Letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Disability, Carers and Community Services
Suzanne Orr - MC25-902908 [SEC=OFFICIAL]

FYI - ACT have received and responded to the letter on the NDIA board reappointment.

@Health.gov.au>

Thanks

From: ORR <ORR@act.gov.au>
Sent: Wednesday, 15 October 2025 8:47 AM
To: Minister Butler DLO_ @Health.gov.au>

Cc: ORR <ORR@act.gov.au>; Minister McAllister DLOSA7E(d) = @ health.gov.au>; CSDDLO
<CSDDLO@act.gov.au>

Subject: RE: Letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Disability, Carers and Comm&@y Services Suzanne Orr -

MC25-902908 [SEC=OFFICIAL] < QQ\
¥ 6?“
OFFICIAL \§\ ,b(\
OV
2 D7
OIS
028@”%9 Q\%
@Q N oo N
1 L N
«<° &
Thank you for this! Confirming we have r(\e\é@ve ve no concerns from the ACT’s perspective.
@ ‘\
Thanks again, appreciate the head%ﬁ% @ (Q
S S
R, 0 )
NIRD O

Chief of Staff | Office of Suzanne 0’5&
SATERNNN @act.govau |

OFFICIAL

From: Minister Butler DLO
Sent: Monday, 13 October 2025 12:19 PM
To: ORR <ORR@act.gov.au>

Cc: Minister Butler DLO

@Health.gov.au>

@Health.gov.au>; Minister McAllister DLO

@health.gov.au>
Subject: Letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Disability, Carers and Community Services Suzanne Orr -
MC25-902908 [SEC=OFFICIAL]

I You don't often get email from_@health.gov.au. Learn why this is important

Page 2 of 3
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Caution: This email originated from outside of the ACT Government. Do not click links or open
attachments unless you recognise the sender and know the content is safe.

Hiteam,

Please see attached a letter from Minister Butler to the Minister for Disability, Carers and Community
Services Suzanne Orr regarding S47E(d), s47C
of the National Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA) Board.

No hardcopy to follow.

Thanks,
s47F, s47E(c)

Departmental Liaison Officer

Office of the Hon Mark Butler MP

Minister for Health and Ageing

Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

T: 02847E(d)"! | E: S47F;

E:s47E(d) @health.gov.au | sS47E(d) @protected.health.gov.au
Suite MG.50 | PO Box 6022, Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600

The Department of Health, Disability and Ageing acknowledges First Nations peoples,as’'the Traditional Owners of Country
throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and-community, We pay our respects to them and their cultures,
and to all Elders both past and present.

"Important: This transmission is intended only forthe use of the addressee and may contain
confidential or legally privileged information. If'you are not the intended recipient, you are notified
that any use or dissemination of this communication is strictly prohibited. If you receive this
transmission in error please notify the author immediately and delete all copies of this transmission."

This email, and any attachmeénts; may-be confidential and also privileged. If you are not the intended
recipient, please notify-the sender.and delete all copies of this transmission along with any
attachments immediately.You should not copy or use it for any purpose, nor disclose its contents to
any other person.
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The Hon Amanda Camm MP
Minister for Families, Seniors and Disability

Services' and Minister for Child Safety gnd the SELIVERING }"i’é&’ » Queensland
Prevention of Domestic and Family Violence FOR QUEENSLAND S Government

Your reference: MC25-902908

Our reference: MIN ID 25-03535: DFSDSCS 07026-2025 1 William Street Brisbane 4000
GPO Box 2031

Brisbane Queensland 4000 Australia
Telephone +61 7 3719 7360

Email families.services@ministerial.qld.gov.au
Website www.families.qld.gov.au

The Honourable Mark Butler MP

Minister for Health and Ageing

Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme
Minister.Butler@health.gov.au

/
Dey«é Wd/ A{
Thahk you for your letter on 13 October 2025 regarding the proposed appointment

arrangements for the Chair of the National Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA) Board and
three Board members.

Noting the imminent expiry of the NDIA Board Chair and three Board member positions, |
confirm my support for the proposed three-month agting arrangements for Mr Kurt Fearnley
AO, Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Dr Graeme Innes AM)and DrDenis Napthine AO. | note
the proposed short-term arrangements will enstire continuity'for the NDIA Board while
longer-term arrangements are considered.

Queensland’s position for the longer-term appointments to the NDIA Board is that
appointments should be done through a fransparent and open recruitment process. As joint
shareholders in the scheme, it is important that, in addition to the right mix of skills and
experience, there is adequate fepresentation of members from each state and territory on
the Board. This would ensure shared goyernance of the scheme at every level and provide
the Australian community?with confidence the NDIA Board includes diverse representation.

In this regard, there'is a n€ed far-clarity and certainty about the process that will be
established for recruitment and’appointment of individuals for future appointments to the
NDIA Board,.Jrequestthis-matter be addressed as an agenda item at a Disability Reform
Ministerial Council meeting. This would ensure there is a solid plan within the current reform
context regardinng how-Board appointments will be managed to ensure appropriate
constitution of theBoard.

If you require any further information or assistance in relation to this matter, please contact
ATF , Chief of Staff in my office on 47F who will be happy to assist.

Yours sincerely

he Hohourable Amanda Camm MP
Minister for Families, Seniors and Disability Services and
Minister for Child Safety and the Prevention of Domestic and Family Violence

I 1o 2028
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OFFICIAL
¥

The Hon Mark Butler MP
Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MC25-902908

The Hon Amanda Camm MP

Minister for Families, Seniors and Disability Services
GPO Box 2031

BRISBANE QLD 4000

Dear '4’“ o v . QQ
@

| am writing to consult with you on*and acting

arrangements of three members of the National Dlg |§_Y/Insur§ce Agency (NDIA) Board.

As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plaggsﬁ‘i‘ 68?} overseelng the strategic
direction, governance, and performance of hﬁ{h sability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership &l{d guu@a Q ensure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to lmprovo;e> rt|c1 ipants across Australia.

In this.context, and in accordaqﬁce@l (s
Insurance Scheme Act 2013 A

In addition, NDIA Board members Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Dr Graeme Innes AM,

and Dr Denis Napthine AO, current terms are also set to expire on 17 October 2025,

In accordance with section 129 of the NDIS Act, | wish to advise you of my intention to act
Ms Diamond, Dr Innes, and Dr Napthine as members of the NDIA Board for a period of three
months commencing 18 October 2025, while longer term arrangements are considered.

If you have any comments on these acting arrangements, | would appreciate your feedback
as soon as possible.

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler(@health.gov,au
OFFICIAL
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OFFICIAL
2
Should your office wish to discuss the above arrangements further, the relevant contact at the
Department of Health, Disability and Ageing is Mr James Maclsaac, First Assistant Secretary of
the NDIS Participants and Performance Division, who can be contacted onSATFE

Yours sincerely

Mark Butler

/3 110 12025

cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme
O
& &
O 6?~

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

Ms Suzanne Orr MLA

Minister for Disability, Carers and Community Services
GPO Box 1020

CANBERRA ACT 2601

Dear MinistEr Ay s > ‘Qq
nd acting

N
| am writing to consult with you on i
arrangements of three members of the National Dis@ty lnsur% Agency (NDIA) Board.
O &V

D . _

m@o {sh\%verseeing the strategic
l\%ﬁbna bility Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
§ cet9 ensure the Scheme delivers on its

|C|pants across Australia.

As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plays
direction, governance, and performance of
Its members provide expert leadership a
objectives and continues to improve ogfe
, %
In this context, and in accordancg@‘
Insurance Scheme Act 2013 S

on 127(3) of the National Disability

In addition, NDIA Board members Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Dr Graeme Innes AM,

and Dr Denis Napthine AQ, current terms are also set to expire on 17 October 2025.

In accordance with section 129 of the NDIS Act, | wish to advise you of my intention to act
Ms Diamond, Dr Ihnes, and Dr Napthine as members of the NDIA Board for a period of three
months commencing 18 October 2025, while longer term arrangements are considered.

If you have any comments on these acting arrangements, | would appreciate your feedback
as soon as possible.

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler@health gov.au
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

the NDIS Participants and Performance Division, who can be contacted on

Yours sincerely

Mark Butler
1$ /10 72025
cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme

o

< &)
ol 6?~
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The Hon Mark Butler MP
Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MC25-902908

The Hon Nat Cook MP

Minister for Human Services, Seniors and Ageing Well
GPO Box 2832

ADELAIDE SA 5001

Dear Mi):aer/n/ -/

‘ \QQ
I am writing to consult with you on acting
arrangements of three members of the National Disa lnsura Agency (NDIA) Board.

\
As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plays qﬁ q@le{{\ﬁverseemg the strategic
nal

direction, governance, and performance of the/l billty Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership a gf\&i’c \%’nsure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to improve o&’& o;\&partlc:pants across Australia.

In this context, and in accordan ’M on 127 3) of the National Disabilit
Insurance Scheme Act 2013 (

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

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler(@health.gov.au
OFFICIAL
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Should your office wish to discuss the above arrangements further, the relevant contact at the
Department of Health, Disability and Ageing is Mr James Maclsaac, First Assistant Secretai of

the NDIS Participants and Performance Division, who can be contacted on

Yours sincerely

Mark Butler
(11107202
cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability-Insurance Scheme
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The Hon Mark Butler MP
Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MC25-902908

The Hon Lizzie Blandthorn MP
Minister for Disability

Level 22, 50 Lonsdale Street
MELBOURNE VIC 3000

Dear ML’ 124k

| am writing to consult with you on the
arrangements of three members of the National Dlsab |

Insurangg gency (NDIA) Board.

As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plays a cqh%bqé verseeing the strategic
direction, governance, and performance of tQ@a ility Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership and(gu %nsure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to-improve o&@n{\g}o,r\ articipants across Australia.

In addition, NDIA Board members Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Dr Graeme Innes AM,

and Dr Denis Napthine AO, current terms are also set to expire on 17 October 2025.

In accordance with section 129 of the NDIS Act, | wish to advise you of my intention to act
Ms Diamond, Dr Innes, and Dr Napthine as members of the NDIA Board for a period of three
months commencing 18 October 2025, while longer term arrangements are considered.

If you have any comments on these acting arrangements, | would.appreciate your feedback
as soon as possible.

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler(@health.cov.au
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
the NDIS Participants and Performance Division, who can be contacted oni

7%

Mark Butler

({ /1o /2025

cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme
O
S

NS
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The Hon Mark Butler MP
Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MC25-902908

The Hon Kate Washington MP
Minister for Disability Inclusion
GPO Box 5341

SYDNEY NSW 2001

Dear Mi)iste( < ‘ Qq

| am writing to consult with you on and acting
arrangements of three members of the National Disa\)’ lnsurae\b Agency (NDIA) Board.

As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plays a eﬁl 11)_?3? verseelng the strategic
direction, governance, and performance of nal b|||ty Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership an |dQ§,Q nsure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to improve o o:@artlupants across Australia.

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
as soon as possible. '

Parliament House Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler@health.gov.au
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

the NDIS Participants and Performance Division, who can be contacted o

Yourssincerely

Mark Butler
, ; / £9/2025

cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability{nsurance Scheme
é)\Q

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

The Hon Joanne Palmer MLC
Minister for Disability Services
Level 9, 15 Murray Street
HOBART TAS 7000

Dear Ministel) § A4 ‘\Qq

%)
I am writing to consult with you o nd acting
arrangements of three members of the National Dig& ip{/lnsur e Agency (NDIA) Board.
QY .

AN
As you would be aware, the NDIA Board playséb:rit,@él ro overseeing the strategic

direction, governance, and performance of th isability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership @(ﬁ gui nce to ensure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to improvaeﬁthg}s f%@articipants across Australia.

& <
In this context, and in accorda&é&\/v‘ secti
Insurance Scheme Act 2013 (NDIS Act

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

Yours sifgicerely

!

Mark Butler

/Z /y 0 12025

cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disabil'@ghsurance Scheme
%)

OFFICIAL
Page 2 of 2



FOI 26-2372 - Document 10

OFFICIAL

The Hon Mark Butler MP
Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MC25-902908

The Hon Jinson Charls MLA
Minister for Disability

GPO Box 3146

DARWIN NT 0801

-~

Dear Mipistsr O [1~A4~ O
;&
| am writing to consult with you on cting
arrangements of three members of the National Di Insur% Agency (NDIA) Board.
S b

As you would be aware, the NDIA Board plays agn%m@o {%ﬁoverseemg the strategic
direction, governance, and performance of aﬁ}na ability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert Ieadershlp a ¢ ce@ ensure the Scheme delivers on its
objectives and continues to improve og&o @artlcipants across Australia.

In this context, and in accordancg@lt jonal Di
Insurance Scheme Act 2013

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

* Mark Butler

}Z /1e /2025

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

The Hon Hannah Beazley MLA
Minister for Disability Services
Dumas House

2 Havelock Street

WEST PERTH WA 6005

Dear Ml)‘lnw/f/ WN‘L \Qq

< o
| am writing to consult with you on and acting
arrangements of three members of the National Dlgglq/lnsurge Agency (NDIA) Board.
@ P \\s&
As you would be aware, the NDIA Board play. d@ri c'él overseeing the strategic
direction, governance, and performance of{ﬁe sability Insurance Scheme (NDIS).
Its members provide expert leadership be gl@hﬁ ensure the Scheme delivers on its

objectives and continues to |mprov articipants across Australia.

Q)
In this context, and in accordanéﬂ\

Insurance Scheme Act 2013 {NDI

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

Youps sincerely

Mark Butler

[ 110 12025

cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme

o

< &)
ol 6?~
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To:

cc:

Subject:
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Ministerial Submission
Appointments Three - Appoint
MS25-902908

Version (3)

Date sent to MO: 13/10/25

Minister Butler

Minister McAllister

Chair of the National
Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA) Board, and acting appointments to Board
Chair and other Board positions

Critical date: 16 October 2025, noting Mr Fearnley’s current te xp é? l7@ber 2025.

1.

Recommendations: 0\‘

Note the legislative requirements relating to Wln@ mlease discuss
rd

of the Board Chair, and acting appointments \ *
A
O

members. @\@ Y
oar r dYNot agreed/
o e

/Not agreed/

radLo  Please discuss

)
vs:.{" Not Signed

Attachqu (o) @eﬂ‘& his acting arrangement.
O
Agree to ‘gol@ i ard members whose terms expire on @Nm agreed/
17 Octobe for nths, pendlng a decision on longer term ase discuss
2@ {v‘o W e S wimenUfnA

Board ap
‘Q le o the state and territory disability ministers at S@Not Signed
Atta megh B, as per the legislative requirement to consult with
them @e Chair appointment and acting appointments of
Board members.

Sign the Instruments of Acting Appointment at Attachments /Not Signed
E1 to E3 to give effect to these acting appointments, once the

state and territory consultation requirements referred to in

Recommendation 5 have been satisfied.

Sign the Letter to the Prime Minister at Attachment C ﬂ@luot Signed

1
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P ROTEETE Rt
P, %
8. Note that a separate brief will be provided to you regarding Wlease discuss

options for filling an existing Board vacancy, and the
3 upcoming vacancies.

Date: / ? /T /2025

Commentszﬁ/”m ‘{‘ Mh\mtﬂ bl mnt u.‘fl £
IVM M VAL hrreads “'f““"
¢ () Mwéu

N/l
I G

Contact | James Maclsaac | First Assistant Secretary, NDIS@?(’ i s\ ile:
Officer: and Performance, Dlsablll@ d Cgh ﬂ%
Clearance | Luke Mansfield | A/g Deputy Secretary, @ab:l%bd 6 \
Officer: Carers Group

Signature

Submission summary:

appoint Mr Fearnley as acting Boar
agreement to appoint 3 acting B

s, g@din g decision on longer term
TN

Q‘ <"

appointments. QO
\\‘
Appointment Details:
O
1. The require intments to the NDIA Board are outlined in the National
Disability Ins 2013 (NDIS Act) and the Cabinet Handbook 15t Edition.

2. Asoutlined in g{ Y the NDIA Board is comprised of the Board Chair and up to
11 membe Il I| Board members and their term expiry dates is at Attachment A.

3. The tern\{@‘the@ent Board Chair, Mr Fearnley, is due to expire on 17 October 2025.
appointed Board Chair on 18 October 2022 for a period of 3 years.

5. Section 127(3) of the NDIS Act outlines the legislative requirement to consult with jurisdictions
about the appointment of the Board Chair. The Act does not specify what form this
consultation must take. States and territories do not have to agree to the appointment.

6. To fulfill this requirement, a letter to the state and territory disability Ministers advising them-
of your intention _is provided at Attachment B for your signature.

7. The appointment of the Board Chair is considered a significant appointment, requiring
the approval of the Prime Minister or, at his discretion, Cabinet. A letter to the
Prime Minister seeking this approval is provided at Attachment C for your signature.

i s

Page 2 of 4



FOI 26-2372 - Document 12

ittt
8. B e
seek your agreement to appoint Mr Fearnley as acting Chair for a period of 3 months.
You are not required to consult the states and territories for acting arrangements for the

Board Chair. Since no acting arrangement is already in place, approval of the
Prime Minister or, at his discretion Cabinet, does not need to be sought.

a. To facilitate the timely implementation of the acting appointment, an Instrument
of Appointment is included at Attachment D for your signature, should you agree.

9. The terms of 3 Board members, Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Mr Graeme Innes AM and
Dr Dennis Napthine AO, are also due to expire on 17 October 2025. There is also one
Board vacancy. The department will provide a separate brief outlining options for filling
these 4 Board positions.

10. In the interim we seek your agreement to appoint Ms Diamond, Mr Innes and
Dr Napthine as acting Board members for a period of 3 months commencing from
18 October 2025. This will provide continuity for the Board while longer term
arrangements are being considered.
a. To facilitate the timely implementation of these actmppoirmq ts,@uments
of Appointment are included at Attachments E1-E3 natt@\, should you

agree. 0(\ \
11. Section 129 of the NDIS Act outlines the legislative ireqﬁ_ to cOwsult with
jurisdictions on the acting appointments of Boar: mxsb o folfill this requirement
the letter at Attachment B advises state an orydisabi in%mmisters of your
intention to appoint Ms Diamond, Mr Inni d %&thi acting Board members.

Background: QQQ »&\O @rb

13. The NDIA Board is e @%he&n et DIS Act. Its functions are to ensure the
proper, efficient an ective-perf@ghmance of the NDIA’s functions; determine
objectives, stra énes a licig&¢o be followed by the NDIA; and any other functions
conferred ov{( Boa(by ox @dtler the NDIS Act, the associated regulations or
instruments mad er{é}\l DIS Act, or any other law of the Commonwealth.

S sl
Gender Diversity .0 Alg% ian Government Boards:
A

14.From 1 01 ustralian Government stipulated a gender diversity target
whereby womgh are to hold at least 50% of positions on Government boards and
committeexl%d at least 40% of positions on individual boards and committees.

15. The composition of the NDIA Board (including the Chair) has been 45.5% female and
54.5% male representation.

Sensitivities:

16. The NDIS Act requires consultation with, not agreement from, the states and territories
for a Board Chair appointment, and acting appointments for other (non-Chair) Board
members. It is important that consultation with state and territory ministers takes place
before the letter to the Prime Minister is sent, and the Instruments of Acting
Appointment of other Board members is signed, despite the tight timeframes involved.

— 3
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PROTFECTEDEARINES

Remuneration/Financial iImplications:

17. The renumeration of Board Members is set by the Renumeration Tribunal
(Renumeration and Allowances for Holders of Part-Time Public Office) Determination
2025 (determination). Under this determination, the Board Chair is entitled to $159,500
per annum and Tier 1 travel allowance, and $79,760 per annum and Tier 1 travel
allowance for other Board members.

18. The determination notes a member (other than the Chair) who is also appointed to the
Sustainability Committee is entitled to additional fees as follows:

a. forthe Chair of the Sustainability Committee—$13,850 per year.

b. fora member of the Sustainability Committee—$6,940 per year.

O

Timing/Handling: %

20. Reappointments can take considerable time to formalls |s i Eah I so in this
case due to the need to have the Prime Minister or, :\vonb inet, approve
all NDIA Board appointments.

"o® \Q)(b @Q
21. Timely consideration is requested to suppor\@&par ~qk%ointment documentation, as
well as to give effect to acting arrangement efo e ex of the term of the Chair and
3 other board members on 17 Octob%QQZS Q >
Q QL
Consultations: x
22. Consultation has occurred wn@ ur
department’s Ministerial A@lnt
team and Legal DIVISIOP@Q g\&q e

Communication Acti
23.A commun |I eveloped to announce the reappointment once
agreement ster or Cabinet has been finalised.

(<&® {\'

Attachments:

A:  List 3@ & Members
B: Lett Sta d Territory Disability Ministers

C Letter %@ane Minister

D: Instrumant of Acting Appointment to appoint Mr Kurt Fearnley AO

E1-E3: Instruments of Acting Appointment to appoint Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Mr
Graeme Innes AM.and Dr Dennis Napthine AQ

F1:
F2:
F3:
G:

— 4
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NATIONAL DISABILITY INSURANCE AGENCY BOARD: as at 25/09/2025

NAME GENDER POSITION STATE OF DATE APPOINTED EXPIRY DATE)
(previous term/s RESIDENCE (previous term/s in italics) (previous term/s in
in italics) italics)
Current members.
Mr Kurt FEARNLEY AO M Chair NSW 18 10@\ Q 17.10.25
2 O
Mr Mark DARRAS M Member VIC (\6 @3& &)\ 23.11.26
>
Ms Maryanne DIAMOND AO F Member VIC @b qgll IQ}X;Z 17.10.25
9
Dr Richard FEJO M Member NI 07 *%1 04.23 31.03.26
N
Dr Rhonda Galbally AC F Member %ﬂl C QV (50\ 01.01.25 31.12.27
S
Dr Graeme INNES AM M Member \$ Q 18.10.22 17.10.25
)
Mrs Joan MCKENNA KERR F Membe(r(\g(\s\oﬁé\% 01.04.23 31.03.26
r Denis er .10. .10.
Dr Denis NAPTHINE AO M M \Q %IC 18.10.22 17.10.25
aZ’Q o & 01.04.22 18.07.22
R XN
Ms Estelle PEARSON Fo o o o0 NSW 11.10.23 10.10.26
& mé@ 01.01.17 10.10.23
Dr Ian WATT AC M Qﬁ Ker VIC 28.08.24 27.08.27
NS
Ms Leah VAN POPPEL F @ Member VIC 01.01.25 31.12.27
\'\(\ Member 01.01.22 31.12.24
Vacant - Member --- - -
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Current Gender and Geographic composition
Gender balance Geographic balance
Males: 6 (54.5%) NSW: 3 WA: 1
Females 5 (45.5%) VIC: 6 QLD: 0
SA: 0 TAS: 0
NT: 1 ACT: 0
N

X @able information.

2
S OO
>

Note: Sections marked with an asterisk (*) are exempt from geographical reporting due to the abg@e o) %ly

7
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Minister for Health and Ageing
Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Ref No: MS25-902908

The Hon Anthony Albanese MP
Prime Minister

Parliament House

CANBERRA ACT 2600 ‘Q\\

Dear P"W 4;\,%7 QQ \C)\' ?90

The NDIA Bg§8! eﬁ@s ed under the National Disability Insurance Scheme Act 2013
(NDIS Act). It ung;’ s are to ensure the proper, efficient and effective performance of the

NDIA’s functio termine objectives, strategies and policies to be followed by the NDIA;
and any other fuhctions conferred on the Board by or under the NDIS Act, the associated
regulations or instruments made under the NDIS Act, or any other law of the
Commonwealth.

Section 127(3) of the NDIS Act requires me to consult with the states and territories about
the appointment of the Board Chair. Their agreement is not required. In that context, | have

Mnd territory disability ministers abou

Parliament Housc Canberra ACT 2600 | Minister. Butler@hcealth.gov.au

i
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2

_in accordance with subsection 129(1) of the

NDIS Act, | intend to appoint Mr Fearnley as acting Board Chair for a three-month period
commencing 18 October 2025. This will ensure minimum disruption to the Board. | note that
under section 129 of the NDIS Act, | am not required to consult with states and territories on
the appointment of an acting Chair.

The terms of 3 other Board members, Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Mr Graeme Innes AM and
Dr Dennis Napthine AO, are also due to expire on 17 October 2025. | intend to appoint

Ms Diamond, Mr Innes and Dr Napthine as acting Board members for a period of 3 months
commencing from 18 October 2025. This will provide continuity for the Board while longer
term arrangements are being considered.

The renumeration of Board Members is set by the Renumeration %buna&@nu

and Allowances for Holders of Part-Time Public Office) Determi ‘dj);eS thls
determination, the Board Chair is entitled to $159,500 per ?\ ie vel
allowance. Other Board members are entitled to $79, 76 r 1 travel

allowance.
o '\Q’

Should your office wish to discuss the above arl‘s&e ful
is Mr James Maclsaac, First Assistant Secretaﬁgf the?artl i

at the Department of Health, Disability apgageirg&rho

the relevant contact

s and Performanci i|ii|ii

Yours sjncerely

Mark Butler

[7] /to /2025
cc:  Senator the Hon Jenny McAllister, Minister for the National Disability Insurance Scheme

Encl (4) Appointment Details
Curriculum Vitae
Private Interests Declaration

4. Membership list of the NDIA Board as at 25 September 2025
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INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APPOINTMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, DISABILITY AND AGEING

National Disability Insurance Scheme Act 2013 \& Q
X\ .
INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APPO O @Q
Acting Chair of the Board of the National Disabili &g
I, Mark Butler, Minister for Health and Ageing, Min@‘for leblh the National

Disability Insurance Scheme: &

053 NN
(a) appoint Mr Kurt Fearnley AO under iﬁ@‘\ 12@7011 tional Disability Insurance
Scheme Act 2013 as the acting Chair ohlie of tional Disability Insurance

Agency for a period of three mon egi on ctober 2025 and ending on

anua ) N \S
17 January 2026 \$ QO
o A
Dated this .............d7 ... &\Q 5 .\Q\Qday Of cevviiennnioniencsiionnns 2025
O~ o 6\
e & Q
RO

Minister for Health a{@geir%q&\ister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

@ ~2X

DY @0
$
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OFFICIAL

INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APPOINTMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, DISABILITY AND AGE[NG s&

O
National Disability Insurance Scheme A&@% c)\, 6\

INSTRUMENT OF ACTING App@«lm](
Acting Board member (other than the Chair) of the Na@ bty @mce Agency

I, Mark Butler, Minister for Health and Agemg\@sten@'%ls ity and the National
Disability Insurance Scheme:

(a) appoint Ms Maryanne Diamond @2 of the National Disability
f

Insurance Scheme Act 2013 as the National Disability Insurance
Agency for a period of three ths on¥8 October 2025 and ending on 17 January
2026. @ _

/

ark Butler %
Minister for Heal A@ Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

\‘Q

OFFICIAL

Page 1 of 1
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OFFICIAL

INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APPOINTMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, DISABILITY AND @EING ‘@

o

National Disability Insurance Scheme 4@ @

INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APP
Acting Board member (other than the Chair) of the %@urance Agency

I, Mark Butler, Minister for Health and Agemé@lmst@m Dm&k}y and the National

Disability Insurance Scheme:

(a) appoint Mr Graeme Innes AM seo& ﬂ\29 he National Disability Insurance
Scheme Act 2013 as an actin r of @ atlonal Disability Insurance Agency for

a period of three months be g OW 2025 and ending on 17 January 2026.

ﬁﬁg\\o& ¢ de‘“’ 2025

.dayof .00
\.

@Q

rk Butler
Minister for Health &d ge@ﬁnistet for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme

%)
¥ ?
&

OFFICIAL
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OFFICIAL

INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APPOINTMENT

COMMONWEALTH OF AUSTRALIA
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH, DISABILITY AND AGEING ‘QA Q
National Disability Insurance Scheme \Q\ \(\
INSTRUMENT OF ACTING APP@&A
ce Agency

Acting Board member (other than the Chair) of the N@

I, Mark Butler, Minister for Health and Agemg\@stels@"hbns ity and the National
Disability Insurance Scheme:

(a) appoint Dr Dennis Napthine AO sg i
Scheme Act 2013 as an acting B me

for a period of three months

12‘9@& the National Disability Insurance
tional Disability Insurance Agency

gﬁnister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme
@ @

& Q
&

OFFICIAL
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APPOINTMENT DETAILS PRO-FORMA

Proposing Minister/s The Hon Mark Butler, Minister for Disability and the National Disability
Insurance Scheme
Organisation Board of the National Disability Insurance Agency
(NDIA).
Proposed Position Chair
Is this a New Appointment or a SATC, SATE(d)
Reappointment?
s47C, s47F
a> Q@ $
6 "v
547C, s47E(d) Q) O.)% B Yrime i)
> % \é
Remuneration $159,500 per annum with Tief™ Tr, \’\\ Set by Remuneration
Allowance < ?‘ QO™ | Tribunal.
m% f\(\ Cfb'
N XA\ A\
Has the APSC Merit and | Exempt—astie .‘dfs the\Private Interests Yes
Transparency policy for Office 'S@Q‘ tim @I‘aration attached?
Agency Heads and on y(Q ‘\ )
Statutory Offices been \2@
followed? b{ $\ Is a current CV attached? | Yes
c ,-C\ X
For all other vaca%@‘,’ LA Q\' Is the current membership | Yes
has the Minister @Q ((\Q list of the body attached?
addressed appoint e{@ {\,
options? Q(b
\f‘\® /\@
D\
What is the legislative authority? Section 127 of the National Disability
é{k Insurance Scheme Act 2013 (NDIS
Act).
Have all legislative requirements been met? Yes
Who appoints? Minister
| Departmental Contact Officer | 34/5(©):s47F | Phone | 02347EC). |

All details must be supplied. Contact the Appointments team within your Department
(if applicable) if you have any queries. If further assistance is required, contact Cabinet Division
on S47E@ or S47E@ @pmc.gov.au.

Page 1 of 1
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" Australian Government Ministerial Submission
Department of Health, Appointments Three - Appoint
Disability and Ageing MS25-902908

Version (1)

Date sent to MO: 1/10/25

To: MWr

cc: Minister McAllister

Disability Insurance Agency (NDIA) Board and acting arrangements of other
Board members

Critical date: 16 October 2025, noting Mr Fearnley’s current ter xpnr \\7 @ber 2025.
..QQ o\

Recommendation/s: Q

1. Agreeto S7C T asNDIA B@Q c@q’ (3. Agreed/Not agreed/

for a period up to 3 years. Please discuss
Sign the Letter to the Prime Minister at A& Zhmex a. Signed/Not Signed
iscretion,” i

b. Agreed/Not agreed/
Please discuss

b. Agree to appoint Mr Kurt Fear ﬁo r\%

acting period from 8 Octoher20 0

@
2. Sign the letters to the o4 it rd&ability ministers at 2.Signed/Not Signed
Attachment B, as pe eh%tv consult with them
on the Chair ap Onz\

3. Note tfm@iv [en Ire@@fts relating to the appointment 3.Noted/Please discuss
of the Board Chais

Agree to d¢t PBoa embers whose terms expire on 17 4.Agreed/Not agreed/
October20)25 fq onths, pending a decision on longer term Please discuss
Board\airan nts.

5. Note t separate brief will be provided to you regarding 5.Noted/Please discuss
gptions for filling an existing Board vacancy, and the 3
upcoming vacancies.

Veteof

Signatu

Date: /3/ /© [2025

Comments:

1
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Contact | James Macisaac | First Assistant Secretary, NDIS Participants | Mobile:
Officer: and Performance, Disability and Carers e
Clearance | Robyn Shannon | Deputy Secretary, Disability and Carers Mobile:

Officer: Group stk

Submission summary:

approval to act Mr Fearnley as Chair for a period of 3 months. It also seeks your agreement
to acting arrangements for other Board members.

Appointment Details:

1

10.

The requirements for managing appointments to the NDIA Board are outlined in the National
Disability Insurance Scheme Act 2013 (NDIS Act) and the Cabinet Handbook,15% Edition.

As outlined in the NDIS Act, the NDIA Board is comprised of the@haira@ t Q
da t %&umem A.

11 members. A full list of Board members and their term expi

The term of the Chair of the NDIA Board, Mr Fearnley, i\& to @re
Mr Fearnley was appointed Chair on 18 October 2022 Tor a getiod o

de % ars.

October 2025.

Section 127(3) of the NDIS Act outlines the[égislatipe
about the appointment of the Board T "A\ct d
consultation must take. States and )b'

To fulfill this requirement, Att &en ntai letter to the state and territory disability
Ministers for your signatur&%@is’qk em ur intentionﬁ
CI& i

i '\?@dered a significant appointment, requiring

ent to consult with jurisdictions
ot specify what form this
e to agree to the appointment.

The appointment of the@ér

the approval of the gae Mimster oi\a his discretion, Cabinet. Subject to any feedback
from the states a rritafies, a%@r to the Prime Minister is provided at
Attachment 0 eeking this approval.

seek your agr oint Mr Fearnley as acting Chair for a period of 3 months. You
are not requige It the states and territories for acting arrangements for the Chair

t
when th od@@ than 12 months. Since no acting arrangement is already in place,
approval 0 th@r me Minister or, at his discretion Cabinet, does not need to be sought.

The terms g&Board members, Ms Maryanne Diamond AO, Mr Graeme Innes AM and
Dr Dennis Napthine AO, are also due to expire on 17 October 2025. There is also one
Board vacancy. The department will provide a separate brief outlining options for filling
these 4 Board positions.

tt
(o]

In the interim we seek your agreement to act Ms Diamond, Mr Innes and Dr Napthine as
Board members for a period of 3 months commencing from 18 October 2025. This will
provide continuity for the Board while longer term arrangements are being considered.

— 2
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From: "Minister Butler DLO"
Sent: 17/10/2025 2:16:34 PM
To: S @pm.gov.au” @pm.gov.au>

@protected.health.gov.au>;

"Minister Butler DLO
@Protected.Health.gov.au>;
@Protected.Health.gov.au>

Subject: Correspondence | Minister for Health, Disability and Ageing to the PM | _
[t e e
——
Attachments: Signed letter to PM - MS25-902908.pdf, Enclosures - MS25-902908.pdf
wReTeESreeee X
C 0O
Good Afternoon, 060 \"(\\ qQ)\Q

Please find attached correspondence from the Minister fo ing to the Prime
Minister seeking his approval of
Chair.

o &
Encl (4): ?& (\v
1. Appointment Def@ils - O &
2. Curriculum \Qg (53} Q\
3. Private | sts @a@(\
4. Membership list of the ND aw{(a} at2{b ptember 2025
O A D@
No hard copy to follow. 00 ‘\ \\2\
O @0 o
Thanks &‘Q\% 60 @Q\
& &
@

Departmental Liaisog((\@:er Q)Q

Office of the Hon. Mark BL@r MP

Minister for Health and@ing

Minister for Disability and the National Disability Insurance Scheme
T: 02 SATEQ@) 1 | 1 SATE) SATE

E: @protected.health.gov.au

Suite MG.50 | PO Box 6022

Parliament House, Canberra ACT 2600

The Department of Health and Ageing acknowledges First Nations peoples as the Traditional Owners of Country
throughout Australia, and their continuing connection to land, sea and community. We pay our respects to them and
their cultures, and to all Elders both past and present.
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